
	

__________________________________________________________________________ 
763-479-0527 (Phone)                               1920 County Road 90                                   763-479-0528 (Fax) 

Independence, MN 55359 
http://independence.govoffice.com 

	

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2016 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 7:30 PM 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 

 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council minutes from the July 26, 2016 City Council Meeting. 
b. Approval of City Council minutes from the August 3, 2016 City Council Workshop. 
c. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks numbered 16373-16425. 

 For Information - Checks numbered 16364-16372 are Payroll Checks. 
d. RESOLUTION 16-0823-01: Approval of Temporary Gambling Permit Request for 

Windsong Farm Golf Club. 
e. Approval of Partial Release of Contract for Development For Lot 5, Block 1, 

Woodhill Farms. 
f. Establish Date for the Truth and Taxation Budget Public Hearing on December 13th, 

2016 at 7:00PM.  
 

5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not On The Agenda Can Be Placed Under Open/Misc.  
 

6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 
7. Director Gary Kroells, West Hennepin Public Safety - Activity Report for the Months of 

June and July, 2016. 
 
8. A proposed text amendment to the City of Independence Ordinances as follows: 

  



 

a. ORDINANCE 2016-03:  An ordinance opting-out of the requirements of 
Minnesota Statutes, Section 462.3593, which defines and regulates Temporary 
Family Health Care Dwellings. 

 
8. Open/Misc. 
 
9. Adjourn. 



 

1 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., July 26, 2016 
 

 
MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  
TUESDAY, JULY 26, 2016 –7:30 P.M. 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER. 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 
order by Mayor Johnson at 7:30 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
Mayor Johnson led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3.  ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Betts, Spencer, McCoy, Grotting  
ABSENT: None 
STAFF: City Planner & City Administrator Mark Kaltsas, City Administrative Assistant Horner, City 

Attorney Vose 
VISITORS: Nathan Rogers, Peter Beck, Rich Kirkland, John Hasse, Kathy and Ed Pluth, Barb and Tom 

Janas, LuAnn Brenno, Gabe Licht, Jack Wegmann, Lynda Franklin 
 
4.  ****Consent Agenda**** 

 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on by one 
motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council minutes from the July 12, 2016 City Council Meeting. 
b. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks numbered 16316-16343. 

a. For Information - Checks numbered 16344-16363 are Payroll Checks. 
c. Approval of an Amendment to Agreement with MnDOT Covering Maintenance of the Highway 

12 Lighting. 
 
Motion by McCoy, second by Grotting to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, Spencer, 
McCoy, Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
5.   SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC. 
 
Betts said she would like to add a discussion on having a Park Board. 
 
6. REPORTS OF BOARDS & COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 
 
Spencer attended the following meetings: 

 Lake Sarah Improvement Association Meeting and Picnic 
 



 

2 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., July 26, 2016 
 

Grotting attended the following meetings: 
 Ultimate Frisbee Tournament 

 
McCoy attended the following meetings: 

 Alexandria Law Enforcement Skills Graduation 
 
Betts attended the following meetings: 

 Police Commission Meeting 
 
Johnson attended the following meetings: 

 National League of Cities/ Small Cities Meeting 
 Police Commission Meeting 
 Met Council Land Use Advisory Committee Meeting 
 Legacy of Delano Open House 
 Vikings Stadium Ribbon Cutting 
 Senior Community Services Finance Meeting 

 
Horner attended the following meetings: 

 Hennepin County Assessors Meeting 
 Hennepin County Election Judge Training 
 Alexandria Law Enforcement Skills Graduation 

 
Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 
 
7.  ORDINANCE AMENDMENT TO SECTION 915 - REGULATION OF LAKE SARAH SURFACE 

USE.  
 

a. ORDINANCE 2016-01:  An amendment relating to the removal of the no-wake provision to 
be consistent with the ordinance regulating Lake Independence. 

 
Motion by Spencer, second by Betts to approve the amendment to section 915 of  Ordinance 2016-01. 
Ayes: Johnson, Betts, Spencer, McCoy, Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED 
CARRIED. 
 
8. A PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE CITY OF INDEPENDENCE ORDINANCES AS 

FOLLOWS: 
  

a. ORDINANCE 2016-02:  A proposed amendment to Chapter 5, Sections 510 and 515 – 
establishing regulations which would permit and govern certain Solar Energy Systems within 
the City of Independence. 

 
Kaltsas said the Planning Commission has been working on the development of a solar energy ordinance 
following the submittal of an application for a text amendment to permit large scale solar energy systems 
within the City.  The development of the solar energy ordinance occurred during a series of public hearings 
held over the last six months.  The Planning Commission considered a wide array of information, public input 
and research in developing the recommended language.  A key consideration made during the process pertains 
to large scale solar energy systems or community solar gardens.  Ultimately the Planning Commissioners 
recommended an ordinance which would not allow community solar gardens in the City.  Commissioners 



 

3 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., July 26, 2016 
 

noted that they did not feel large scale systems were a compatible land use with the predominantly residential 
and agriculture uses in the City.   
 
The Planning Commission did develop an ordinance which provides for solar energy systems in the City.  The 
ordinance developed defines several types of solar energy systems as well as provides qualifying site and 
system/site specific design criteria pertaining to residential or smaller commercial scale solar energy systems.  
The ordinance establishes where and what types of systems are permitted, accessory or a conditional use.  The 
ordinance further provides detailed standards regulating the placement, size, types and other criteria for solar 
energy systems permitted within the City.  The recommended ordinance establishes and defines essentially 
two types of solar energy systems; building integrated (roof mounted), and ground mounted (not attached to a 
building or accessory structure and typically mounted on a frame or pole).  Building integrated systems would 
be permitted as an accessory use in all zoning districts of the City.  Ground mounted systems would be a 
conditional use in all zoning districts of the City.  The standards and performance criteria pertaining to each 
type of systems is further detailed in the attached recommended ordinance.  
 
Kaltsas noted the City has received a great deal of public input throughout the development of this ordinance.  
New public input has been attached to this report for further consideration.   
 
Kaltsas said the Planning Commissioners recommended approval of a text amendment to permit and provide 
regulations pertaining to solar energy systems.  The recommended ordinance language has been incorporated 
into an ordinance which is attached to this report.   
 
Grotting asked if this was limiting use to personal use on properties. Kaltsas said not exactly; that a building 
in zoned commercial light industrial use could get a conditional use permit for a ground-mounted system and 
it could also be an accessory integrated use on a building. Grotting asked about an individual who wants to 
sell back and how this affects their personal use. Kaltsas said the ordinance does not prohibit or restrict a 
person from selling back into the grid.  
 
Betts asked if a commercial building had a very large roof if they could have the panels covering the whole 
roof. Kaltsas said they could as there was not a limitation on accessory use. Grotting noted more than 500 
square feet could be permitted in residential as well. Kaltsas said that was correct.  
 
McCoy asked about the screening requirements and what was designated as “adjacent residential”. Kaltsas 
said the spirit of what they were getting at is a sight line and it is difficult to define. He said if the panels could 
be seen it would have to be screened. Vose said Kaltsas’ point was if the system was screened by topography 
no additional screening would be required. McCoy said solar may fit better on the front yards are some of the 
large properties in the City than in the back yards where it may be may not be screened as well. He thought 
the language was tight around the screening conditions. Kaltsas said this was discussed by the Planning 
Commission and they felt you could wholly screen something and it could still be obtrusive element. Kaltsas 
said the Planning Commissioners felt that 90% of the time these systems would be installed in a backyard but 
if someone wanted to make a case for a front yard system they could lobby for a variance.  
 
Grotting said it would be hard to address all zoning districts as a whole and they should be addressed 
individually pertaining to the ordinance.  
 
Johnson said this was very discriminatory in his opinion as a few individuals were trying to dictate what looks 
good and what does not for the City of Independence. He said this was closing our minds to the future. 
Johnson said land owners should have a right to use their land for green energy and should not be prevented 



 

4 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., July 26, 2016 
 

from it by someone that does not want to look at it. Grotting said that residents make good decisions and 
should be able to decide where to park their implements etc. 
 
Vose stated the reason this process is taking place is that there is an applicant with an application to amend the 
City’s ordinance as it relates to a specific solar use. He said the City needs to act on this request or deny it. 
Vose said if it was going to be denied it needed to be done in writing within the 60 day rule. He noted that if 
the Council was not comfortable acting on the other parts of the amendment beyond the application request 
that those parts did not need to be acted on at this point but rather just the application itself could be 
addressed.  
  
Betts said the Planning Commission has done their due diligence and government should represent the people. 
She said the people have made it clear what they want and she would make a motion to move the Planning 
Commission’s recommendation. There was not a second to her motion. Spencer said he would like to hear 
from the applicant before proceeding with the motion. Johnson invited the applicant to address the audience. 
 
Nathan Rogers with Ecoplexus said communities benefit from solar gardens and all of the power generated 
goes into the grid. He said subscribers get a credit on their bill from Xcel Energy and the savings can be very 
substantial. Rogers said a project in Colorado will save subscribers in excess of a million dollars over a 25 
year period. Rogers said community solar has many advantages with one being that they produce power close 
to the load which is much more efficient. Current energy models waste as much as 30% of power due to long 
transmission lines. Solar is a free resource whereas natural gas can be very costly. There are numerous 
pollutants associated with fossil fuel whereas solar has none. Rogers said there has been a lot of talk that if 
solar was allowed in the City would they spread all across the City and how that could be regulated. Rogers 
noted they are looking at specific criteria to install solar gardens so that limits where they would be 
implemented. He said they are placed on 40 contiguous acres which needs to be flat and free of trees. There 
cannot be any wetland or streams. Rogers said they are ideally looking for sights within 2 miles of an Xcel 
substation. Xcel cannot charge subscribers for the cost of installing the solar gardens. The costs of developing 
and installing the gardens are paid by Ecoplexus. He said the landowner needs to sell or agree to a long-term 
lease. Rogers said that at most there would be 3 solar gardens in Independence which represents less than 1% 
of the land. 
 
Rogers said Ecoplexus use completely non-toxic materials and ensures there solar gardens are aesthetically 
pleasing. The units are normally 8-10 feet high and they use deer fencing and reseed under the panels with 
low growing grasses. Rogers said these are nuisance free developments that do not produce noise or gases, 
etc. He said there are no traffic issues other than maybe the three or four months it takes to install the unit. He 
noted there is no dust or odor and this is a suitable use for RR and AG areas. Rogers said this is similar use to 
cell towers and wind turbines which are already allowed in the City of Independence. He said they have done 
exhaustive research and have found the solar gardens have not had an effect on property values. Rogers said 
electricity is a need not a luxury. 
 
Vose stated the Planning Commission was in dispute over whether or not the land values would be affected or 
not and did not know if that needed to be opened again for discussion.  
 
Johnson asked if the limited number of gardens that Rogers was talking about was from his company only as 
there are other competing companies out there. Rogers stated there were competing companies but since no 
others have come forward they would have a hard time bringing a project forward at this point. He said all 
solar gardens have to be online one year from now. A project normally has a gestation period of 18+ months. 
Rogers said this comes from the agreement reached between Xcel and the utility commission.  
 



 

5 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., July 26, 2016 
 

McCoy asked if solar power was going to be our savior over fossil fuels why was there a deadline attached to 
implementing it. Rogers noted Xcel is not crazy about solar as they are public company and are obviously 
beholden to their investors. It is in Xcel’s best interest to limit the pace of development as it will economically 
affect them. Johnson asked if there are incentives from Xcel for people to put in solar gardens that end after 
this deadline. Rogers said not beyond the credits provided. 
 
Betts asked if the roof-mounted systems only have benefits for the individual homeowner. Rogers said that 
was correct.  
 
There was discussion around the actual vote for tonight and what exactly was being addressed whether it be 
the application as presented or the ordinance. Vose stated the history behind the statute. Johnson noted he was 
not ready to vote an ordinance tonight but would be prepared to vote on the application as the Council needed 
to be cognizant of the 60 day rule. 
 
Peter Beck stated that the timeline is not the issue. He said the application is to approach the City to see if they 
are willing to incorporate an ordinance that addresses the statewide policy being implemented on solar 
gardens. Kaltsas said following the technical process pushes the deadline date at this point to August 15, 
2016. 
 
Janas said he felt this process was derailed. He said the City should have been looking at the ordinance but 
instead immediately went to this specific application. Janas said solar gardens can be totally invisible to 
adjacent properties so why limit them to 500 square feet. Johnson said the Council tried working on this solar 
issue before with previous staff and now that it has come back the applicant becomes the sounding board for 
the whole issue unfortunately. 
 
Johnson asked Rogers about the money they proposed putting towards Nelson Road. Rogers stated if the 
ordinance went through and the applicants CUP or IUP was approved they would pave Nelson Road.  
 
Johnson asked why the solar garden in Rockford was on a slope. Rogers said it could be a south facing slope 
but ideally flat property is the preferred location.  
 
McCoy asked who performs the maintenance. Rogers stated the solar maintenance providers perform any 
maintenance. Rogers said there is a remote shut-off called a recloser.  
 
Brenno said her concern is that the Council has just spent an hour listening to the developer again. Brenno 
referenced Bett’s comments that this has already been through the Planning Commission for review. She said 
she disagrees with the comments that the opposition is coming from a small group of people. Brenno said she 
mailed flyers to every residence in Independence in March. She said she has been to all of the meetings and 
she did not hear them talking about the Janas property. Brenno said many residents made public comments 
and the vast majority does not want solar gardens in the City. She urged the Council to be more cognizant of 
the work the Planning Commission has done with the ordinance. 
 
Franklin said she disagreed with the comments about this being discriminatory and that property owners 
should be able to do whatever they want. She noted the comprehensive plan that is for the good of the City. 
Franklin said this is an application before the City. She asked for clarification on the ramifications of a zoning 
change and if it would affect the whole City. Vose said it may but it all depends on the nature of the request. 
He said a zoning change is not generally property specific. Franklin said that is why it is important to examine 
how a zoning change would affect everyone. Franklin said everyone has worked hard to make the City 
beautiful. Franklin asked who the customer base for this type of energy would be as she had heard it would 



 

6 
City of Independence 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., July 26, 2016 
 

not be local residents. She also wanted to know what would happen after the five year mark if it was 
determined this was not a viable source, what would be done with the solar garden at that point.  
 
Johnson said Council should vote on the application or get in writing that the applicant would not hold them 
accountable to the 60 day rule. Spencer said they could take an informal poll and see where everyone sits and 
if there is a lot of dissention than table it. He said there has been as much time as any spent on this and the 
Planning Commission has done a lot of work on it so it would make sense to act. 
 
Johnson said his personal feeling is that it is very discriminatory to the Ag district and that needs to be 
included in the ordinance as well. Betts said they should vote on the ordinance and the recommendations the 
Planning Commission has put before them. McCoy said he is not against solar gardens but he does not like 
picking and choosing what will be allowed. He said this should be part of the comp plan discussions. McCoy 
said that other avenues of revenue for land owners have been turned down and noted it is hard for large Ag 
properties to make it. He said he would be opposed to approving solar farms individually as it should be part 
of the comp plan review instead. Grotting said he has problem with the Ag valuation aspect and if this is an 
acceptable use. He said he is not in favor of the ordinance in its current state. Spencer said he understands the 
benefits of solar and knows a lot of communities are dealing with this issue right now. He said he respects the 
work the Planning Commission has done and supports their recommendations.  
 
Motion by Betts, second by Spencer to approve Ordinance 2016-02. Ayes: Betts, Spencer and McCoy. 
Nays: Grotting and Johnson. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
Motion by Spencer, second by Betts presented by Ecoplexes for a solar garden. Ayes: Betts, Spencer 
and McCoy. Nays: Grotting and Johnson. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
Vose stated this is an oral denial of the application but there would have to be a written denial that states the 
reason for denial. He said that could be added to the agenda for the special session on August 3rd and the 
Council could formally act on it at that time. 
 
9.  OPEN/ MISC. 
 
Betts said there is some money in the park fund now and it would be nice to get a park board organized again. 
Johnson said we could advertise it again in the next newsletter but noted this was done a year ago and there 
were no responses.  
 
10.  ADJOURN 
 
Motion by Spencer, second by McCoy to adjourn at 9:30 p.m. Ayes: Betts, Spencer, McCoy, Grotting 
and Johnson. Nays: None. Absent: None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
___________________ 
Trish Bemmels/ Recording Secretary 



 

1 
City of Independence 
City Council Work Session Minutes 
7:00 a.m. August 3, 2016 
 

MINUTES OF A WORK SESSION OF THE 
INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 3, 2016 –7:00 A.M. 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a work session of the Independence City Council was called to order 
by Mayor Johnson at 7:00 a.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
Postponed until regular meeting. 
 
3. ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Spencer, Betts and Grotting  
ABSENT: McCoy 
STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, Administrative Assistant Beth Horner 
VISITORS: ABDO Steve McDonald, LuAnn Brenno, Lynda Franklin 
 
 
3.  RESOLUTION 16-0803-01:  Denying the application for a text amendment to allow Community 

Solar Gardens as a conditional use permit in the AG-Agriculture zoning district.    
 
Motion by Spencer, second by Betts to approve Resolution 16-0803-01. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, Spencer 
and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: McCoy. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 
4.          REQUEST TO RELEASE PROPERTY FROM COVENANCE: 
 

Kaltsas said an attorney had contacted the City regarding a property at 6140 Woodhill Lane and 
requested that the property be released from its covenant. He noted there is a Declaration of 
Covenance and it cannot be released.  
 

Motion by Grotting, second by Spencer to close the special meeting. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, Spencer and 
Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: McCoy. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 
5.    2017 Budget 

 
a. Long Range Capital Plan  
b. Initial Budget Assumptions /Discussion Points  
c. Draft Budget 

 
Kaltsas said City staff has been working on the 2017 Budget.  Abdo, Eick & Meyers has prepared a  
preliminary budget to initiate the budget development process.  In the initial draft, staff has used  
“placeholder” budget increases based on historical knowns as well as any early information obtained from  
various entities (i.e. insurance premiums, fire and police initial budget information).  The actual budget and  
any proposed increases or decreases will be fully vetted over the next several months.  The City has tried to  
identify any special projects or initiatives (i.e. comprehensive plan) that will need to be considered in the 2017  



 

2 
City of Independence 
City Council Work Session Minutes 
7:00 a.m. August 3, 2016 
 

budget.  Based on the preliminary estimated tax capacity, the City will realize increased revenues from 2016. 
 
In preparation for the 2017 budget, staff is currently working on a comprehensive public works road and  
equipment capital improvement plan, a City Hall capital improvement plan and a sanitary sewer capital  
improvement plan.  It is anticipated that this information will be presented at the upcoming budget workshop.   
It is anticipated that the City will have additional budget specific workshops in August and September (as  
needed) to develop the 2017 budget.  The City has until September 30, 2016 to adopt a maximum tax levy.    
 
Kaltsas said some of the key 2017 budget considerations are as follows: 
 

1. General 3% inflation increase built into budget. 
2. Using WHPS draft budget proposal as a placeholder which reflects an approximate $115,000 increase 

over 2016.  This budget has not been approved by the Police Commission and will likely change prior 
to final adoption. 

3. Moved portion of building inspector salary out of sewer budget to reflect actual time allocation. 
4. Increase budget to reflect true recycling costs incurred. 
5. Included $15,000 in 2017 budget for 2040 Comprehensive Plan preparation.  It is anticipated that the 

City would complete this process over two years and therefore pay for the plan over two years (must 
submit plan to Metropolitan Council by end of 2018). 

6. Budget as proposed does not fully fund capital/long range plans for equipment and City Hall upgrades. 
7. City will be transferring approximately $92,000 from overlay project to Public Works capital fund in 

2016. 
8. City will be receiving approximately $40,000 for Beacon Academy conduit financing in 2016.  This 

funding could be utilized to fund capital expenditures. 
 
Johnson noted that we are one of the few cities that will not get money from Met Council. Kaltsas said our tax 
capacity is too high so that is the reason. Johnson said if the City ends up hosting the National League of 
Small Cities meeting in 2018, funds would need to be earmarked for that event.  
 
McDonald said Kaltsas hit all the major points. He said there would be a 9% increase in the general fund. 
McDonald said the preliminary levy has to be certified by September 30th.  He said the Building Inspectors 
salary was reallocated from the sewer to the general fund. Recycling expenses increased by 20k. Kaltsas noted 
clean-up day remained fairly neutral. Spencer noted recycling commodities are down. He said it may make 
sense to go back to a flat rate on recycling.  
 
Betts asked if the increase in the general fund towards City Hall was to replace the carpeting. Kaltsas said 
they went through the budget to true line items and last year they were short on capital.  
 
Spencer asked about the increase in the financial administration, up 29k. McDonald noted the biggest factor 
there is the comp plan.  
 
McDonald said the overall tax capacity increase for the City of Independence is 5.61%. He said a comparison 
was run with three neighboring cities which included Greenfield, Dayton and Corcoran. Kroells commented 
that Greenfield has no police, Dayton has only 6 officers and Corcoran has 7 so that is a big difference when 
comparing budgets. Spencer said we should be comped out against Minnetrista and Medina for a better 
picture.  
 
McDonald noted there was no change in staffing. Revenue was up 8.07% and taxes represent the biggest 
increase in the general fund.  



 

3 
City of Independence 
City Council Work Session Minutes 
7:00 a.m. August 3, 2016 
 

Johnson asked about the Public Safety portion of the budget. Kroells said 78% is for staff. He said it is a 
young, new staff and they are still in the step increase years as well as cost of living. He said with step 
increases and health insurance increases the department has a 75k increase. Spencer said 7.2% per year since 
the increase to 10 officers is not going to be sustainable year after year. He said the community is not growing 
fast enough to keep up with these numbers. Kroells said he hears and understands the budget restraints but 
also wants it noted that no one wants to do the police job. He said officers will leave and go other places. 
Kroells said one is leaving for Eden Prairie and noted they are the highest paying police department in the 
state.  
 
Kaltsas asked if there was any feedback from the Council on the rate or percentage increase numbers. He said 
McCoy provided feedback prior that he would like to see the rate remain flat and if that is not possible at least 
keep it under 40. Johnson asked about meeting with the Maple Plain Fire Department as there is nothing on 
his schedule yet for that. Spencer said he is with McCoy and would like to stay under 40. He said the Lake 
Sarah Pioneer Creek Watershed provided their budget and it is not 3%. McDonald noted the big dollar ticket 
items are known. He said there are 10-15 items subject to 3%. Kaltsas said the conduit funding is a nice chunk 
that can be tagged into the capital reserve. 
 
Spencer said the fund balance is not at 50 where it needs to be. McDonald said this is the by-product from 
2007-2011 where they kept making cuts and  left the City with no cushion. McDonald noted that for future 
repair/ replacement on streets using tax levies for bonds the amount will be around 100-120k per year. Kaltsas 
noted that by structuring the debt sooner they can plan for 5-10 years on roads maintenance and know costs 
long term. McDonald said there will be 115k falling off in 2021 from the levy and that will free up capital. 
 
Spencer said money needs to go towards fixing up the City Hall building. McDonald said Kaltsas has a done a 
great job in thinking ahead and being proactive with the budget.  
 
Ende said an issue coming up is maintaining the 35 miles of gravel roads and costs associated with that. 
Spencer said Ende has done a great job with the crack sealing of roads this year.  
 
Kaltsas said if Maple Plain Fire stays flat that will help.  
 
6. Sewer Rates 

 
Kaltsas outlined the study saying he City of Independence, Minnesota (the City) owns and operates sewer 
utilities. These services are provided to roughly 225 residential and commercial customers and charges for 
availability to another 26 parcels. The City estimates new connections as outlined on the assumptions page. 
Since the annual expectation for increased connections is fairly low, the City will need to rely primarily on 
rate increases in order to fund increased operating costs and future capital needs. 
 
This rate study analyzes the cash flows of the sewer utilities and sewer access charge funds of the City. 
Sources and uses of cash are projected for the years ending December 31, 2016 to December 31, 2025. The 
study uses the current number and type of accounts to project future revenue at a suggested rate for each of 
the utility funds, each year.   
 
Annual capital costs are projected separately for each of the funds for the projection period.  The City has an 
updated capital improvement plan that goes from 2016 to 2025.  Projections anticipate bonded street projects 
for each of the next five years. 



 

4 
City of Independence 
City Council Work Session Minutes 
7:00 a.m. August 3, 2016 
 

The Sewer fund has had negative cash from operations for each of the previous three years presented.  In 
order to fund future operations, capital and debt, it will be necessary to increase rates and consider 
establishing a sewer district for all potential users of the system.     
 
The financial projection is based on billings at the current rate inflated (current state) and billings increased 
over a 10 year period sufficient to generate positive cash flow (Scenario 1). Expense assumptions are outlined 
in the assumptions section on the following page and present, to the best of management’s knowledge and 
belief, the City’s expected results of cash flows for the projection period if such uses of cash occur. 
Accordingly, the projection reflects management’s judgment, as of the date of this projection, of the expected 
conditions and the City’s expected course of action if such usage and expense totals were attained. The 
presentation is designed to provide information to the City Council concerning recovery of expenses that 
might be achieved if rates were adjusted and should not be considered to be a presentation of expected future 
results. Accordingly, this projection may not be useful for other purposes. The assumptions disclosed herein 
are those that management believes are significant to the projection. Furthermore, there will usually be 
differences between projected and actual results, because events and circumstances frequently do not occur as 
expected and those differences may be material. 
 
Kaltsas noted the burden is placed on those who are hooked up to sewer to cover the costs of the investment 
twenty years ago as the 26 parcels that have availability and have not hooked up are only paying a nominal 
year fee in comparison. He said to cover costs the quarterly rate for paying subscribers will go up 10% over 
the next three years and then 3% thereafter. The rate would go from $168.00 in 2016 to $185.00 in 2017 to 
$203.00 in 2018 and to $224.00 in 2019. The availability rate for those that have not hooked up would go 
from $32.00 per quarter to $92.00 per quarter. McDonald said this is working towards a 2025 target to build 
the cash reserve. Spencer said 20 years in a septic system is fair use so what tools can be implemented in these 
instances to get the hookups. Kaltsas said some are senior residents waiting to sell and the buyer will have to 
hookup. Johnson said this is moving in the right direction. 
 
7. General Correspondence- brief mention of several upcoming items. 
 
Johnson asked about the Budd Street project. Kaltsas said it is projected to start after Labor Day.  
 
Kaltsas said MnDOT will be coming out to meet with Staff about the County Road 90 intersection 
independent of the Highway 12 Coalition project. He said they are looking at a round-about at the 
intersection. Kaltsas said plans get approval and then it would be an 18 month timeframe to implement. 
 
Kroells said the median barrier is funded from 6 to Wayzata. The received one bid and it was very high. They 
will re-open the bid and set the terms as they will close the road for 18 days instead of trying to do weekend 
work. Kroells said the work at the County Road 92 intersection is set to be completed on August 26th.  
 
Kaltsas said he had a meeting with the Met Council about the proposed subdivision at 1385 Co Rd 19 (former 
tree farm). They talked about sewering the development with hookups to the L63 lift station. Kaltsas said Met 
Council is interested in the project and it does fit in with their long range sewer plan.  
 
5. ADJOURN 
 
Johnson adjourned the work session at 8:45 a.m. 
Respectfully submitted, 
_____________________________ 
Trish Bemmels, Recording Secretary 



Windsong Farm Golf Club, LLC – Temporary Gambling License Application 8.23.2016  
 Page 1 
 

City of Independence 

Windsong Farm Golf Club – Temporary Gambling Permit Request 

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

Meeting Date: August 23, 2016 

 
Request: 
Chapter 14 of the City Code regulates lawful gambling in the City.  The City has the ability to license certain 
types of gambling which are exempt from the state licensing requirements.  The City has received an 
application for a temporary gambling licensing from Windsong Golf Club in association with a charity golf 
event being held on September 12, 2016.  The event will be held at the golf course and benefits the Open 
Arms of Minnesota non-profit organization.  
 
The City has criteria for evaluating gambling licenses within the City.  The criteria require a sponsoring 
organization (Windsong GC) to comply with the following:  have a permanent facility in the City for at least 
three years; the event must occur on the sponsoring organizations premises; the sponsoring organization 
must have a minimum of 20 members; the event cannot occur at the same time as another gambling event 
and stipulates the types and maximum amounts for certain types of gambling.   
 
The applicant appears to meet the criteria established in Chapter 14 of the Independence City Code 
relating to gambling licenses.    
 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff is seeking consideration by the City Council for the license application requesting a temporary gambling 
license.   Resolution No. 16-0823-01 is provided should the City Council wish to approve the application.  
 
 

Attachments 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-0823-01 

 
 

 

 



 

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-0823-01 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING TEMPORARY GAMBLING LICENSE FOR WINDSONG 
FARM GOLF CLUB, LLC FOR AN EVENT TO BE HELD ON SEPTEMBER 12, 2016 

AND LOCATED AT 18 GOLF WALK 

 

WHEREAS, Windsong Farm Golf Club, LLC has submitted an application to the City of 
Independence requesting City approval of a Minnesota Lawful Gambling LG220 Application for 
an Exempt Permit located at 18 Golf Walk, Independence, MN 55359; and  

WHEREAS, the City has established criteria for evaluating applications for gambling 
licenses; and  

WHEREAS, the applicant has been found to meet the criteria established by the City for a 
temporary gambling license. 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Independence approve of the 
Minnesota Lawful Gambling LG220 Application for an Exempt Permit. The City Administrator is 
directed to attach a copy of this resolution to the application to be submitted to the Gambling 
Control Board. 

 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
23rd day of August, 2016, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 
 

 

        _________________________ 

        Marvin Johnson, Mayor 

Attest: 

___________________________________ 

Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 













 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 

Council Meeting 

Partial Release of Contract for Development – Lot 5, Block 1, Woodhill Farms 

 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

Meeting Date: August 23, 2016 

 
Discussion: 
The City received a request for a partial release of the contract for development on a property located at 
6140 Wood Hill Lane.  This development contract was recorded in May of 1995 in association with the 
Woodhill Farms Development.  The City does not have any indication or record of outstanding 
items/payments relating to this development and in particular to this one property.  The attorney for the 
property owner had provided the City with an incorrect document number asking for the release of the 
private covenants for this property.  The City is not able to provide such a release.  Since that time, the 
attorney recognized their error and has now requested a release from the developer’s agreement for the 
subject property.  This agreement dates back to 1995 and the City is not aware of any outstanding issues 
relating to this property.  Paragraph 1.08 provides for the release of the property if all conditions of the 
agreement are satisfied. 
 
It is recommended that the City approve the release of the contract for development for Lot 5, Block 1, 
Woodhill Farms.  
 

 
 
Attachments:   Partial Release of Contract for Development 
  Contract for Development 
 



7781851v1 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
PARTIAL RELEASE OF  

 CONTRACT FOR DEVELOPMENT 
 

FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt and adequacy of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the undersigned, CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, a 
municipality of the State of Minnesota (“City”), hereby releases the real property legally 
described on the attached Exhibit A hereto from the Contract for Development between Peter 
Andrea Company, a Minnesota corporation, as developer, and the City, dated May 26, 1995 and 
recorded on May 30, 1995 as Document No. 6431979 in the office of the County Recorder for 
Hennepin County. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this instrument this _____ day 
of ______________, 2016.  

 

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
a municipality of the State of Minnesota  

By:         

Marvin Johnson, Mayor   
 

By:         

 Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator  



7781851v1 
 

 2  
 

 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
____________________, 2016, by Marvin Johnson, the Mayor, and Mark Kaltsas, the City 
Administrator of the CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, a municipality of the State of Minnesota, on 
behalf of said municipality.  

_________________________________________ 
Notary Public 

 

 
 
 
 
This instrument was drafted by: 
Briggs and Morgan, P.A.  (SES) 
2200 IDS Center 
80 South Eighth Street 
Minneapolis, Minnesota  55402-2157 
 



7781851v1 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 

 
Lot Five (5), Block One (1), Woodhill Farms, Hennepin County, Minnesota 
 
 
PID No.  14-118-24-21-0003 
 
Street Address:  6140Wood Hill Lane, Independence, MN  55359 
 
 
 
 
 
 

















































































Ordinance Opting Out of MN Statute 462.3593 – City Council  August 23, 2016 
 Page 1 
 

City of Independence 

Proposed Amendment to the City of Independence Ordinances  
Title XV: Land Usage Opting-out of the Requirements of  

Minnesota Statute, Section 462.3593 
 

To: City Council   

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: August 23, 2016 

 

 
Consideration: 
 
Consideration of an amendment to the City’s Zoning Ordinance as follows: 
 

1. An ordinance opting-out of the requirements of Minnesota Statutes, Section 462.3593 which 
defines and regulates Temporary Family Health Care Dwellings. 

 
 
Discussion: 
 
During the 2016 legislative session, the state adopted a new law relating to temporary family health care 
dwellings.  Temporary family health care dwellings are defined by the new statute as follows: 
 
 "Temporary family health care dwelling" means a mobile residential dwelling  
 providing an environment facilitating a caregiver's provision of care for a mentally or  
 physically impaired person that meets the requirements of subdivision 2. 
 
The Temporary Family Health Care Dwellings law requires cities to approve qualifying temporary accessory 
dwelling units unless the City opts out of the law by Ordinance prior to September 1st.  The law allows 
temporary structures similar to a trailer or mobile home to be parked on any residential property for a period 
of six months for the purpose of providing care to family members.  The time period can be extended for an 
additional six months by requesting a permit extension.  The mobile dwelling unit would need to be 
temporarily connected to water and electric from the principal structure.  Sewer removal would also need to 
be accommodated by allowing access to the temporary structure.  The temporary dwelling unit can be 
located anywhere on the property that meets the principal structure setbacks and is accessible to 
emergency vehicles. 
 
Many Minnesota cities are opting out of the statute so that they can locally govern land use within their 
respective jurisdiction.  Cities are then typically evaluating their own ordinances to determine if changes 
should be considered to accommodate temporary health care dwelling units.  Independence does not have 



Ordinance Opting Out of MN Statute 462.3593 – City Council  August 23, 2016 
 Page 2 
 

a specific ordinance pertaining to temporary dwelling units; however, the City does consider the use of an 
accessory dwelling unit for living quarters in both the RR-Rural Residential and AG-Agriculture zoning 
districts as a conditional use permit.   
 
The City typically uses the conditional use process to fully vet and consider the ramifications, impacts and 
then potential mitigation measures for land use decisions.  The process required for conditional use permits 
involves a public hearing and notification of the surrounding property owners.  During this process the City 
can evaluate potential impacts to surrounding properties due to the use proposed.  Most cities regulate 
permanent structures for family care under an accessory dwelling unit or similar ordinance.  Independence 
has the provisions in place for residents to seek approval of a “mother-in-law” type accessory dwelling unit.  
The City can discuss and further evaluate if temporary “mother-in-law” units or uses fit within Independence 
and should be further considered by the City.  
 
 
Planning Commission Discussion/Recommendation: 
 
The Planning Commission reviewed the request pertaining to the proposed ordinance opting-out of the 
state statute.  Planning Commissioners believed that the City’s current ordinances comprehensively 
address and provide residents with the provisions for similar care of family members.  Commissioners 
believed that zoning controls should be governed by cities at the local level.  Commissioners recommended 
approval of the opt-out ordinance to the City Council.    
 
City Council Members will need to consider approval of Ordinance 2016-03 opting-out of the requirements 
of Minnesota Statutes, Section 462.3593 which defines and regulates Temporary Family Health Care 
Dwellings. 
 
 
 

Attachments:   Ordinance No. 2016-03 
   League of Minnesota Cities Summary Publication 
    

 

 
 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-03 
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

 
AN ORDINANCE OPTING-OUT OF  

THE REQUIREMENTS OF 
MINNESOTA STATUTES, SECTION 462.3593 

 
WHEREAS, on May 12, 2016, Governor Dayton signed into law the creation and 

regulation of temporary family health care dwellings, codified at Minn. Stat. § 462.3593, which 
permit and regulate temporary family health care dwellings;  
 

WHEREAS, subdivision 9 of Minn. Stat. §462.3593 allows cities to “opt out” of those 
regulations;  

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF INDEPENDENCE ORDAINS as follows: 
 
Section 1.   City Code, Chapter 5 is amended by adding Section 515.12 as follows: 
 
OPT-OUT OF MINNESOTA STATUTES, SECTION 462.3593: 
SECTION 515.12. Pursuant to authority granted by Minnesota Statutes, Section 462.3593, 
subdivision 9, the City of Independence opts-out of the requirements of Minn. Stat. §462.3593, 
which defines and regulates Temporary Family Health Care Dwellings. 
 
SECTION 2. This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its passage and publication. 
 
ADOPTED this 23rd day of August, 2016, by the City Council of the City of Independence.  
 
      CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
 
 

By: _____________________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
____________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator  

 
(SEAL) 



 

 

Temporary Family Health Care Dwellings of 2016 
Allowing Temporary Structures – What it means for Cities 

 
Introduction: 
On May 12, 2016, Gov. Dayton signed, into law, a bill creating a new process for landowners to 
place mobile residential dwellings on their property to serve as a temporary family health care 
dwelling.1 Community desire to provide transitional housing for those with mental or physical 
impairments and the increased need for short term care for aging family members served as the 
catalysts behind the legislature taking on this initiative. The resulting legislation sets forth a short 
term care alternative for a “mentally or physically impaired person”, by allowing them to stay in a 
“temporary dwelling” on a relative’s or caregiver’s property.2 
 
Where can I read the new law? 
Until the state statutes are revised to include bills passed this session, cities can find this new bill at 
2016 Laws, Chapter 111. 
 
Does the law require cities to follow and implement the new temporary family 
health care dwelling law? 
Yes, unless a city opts out of the new law or currently allows temporary family health care 
dwellings as a permitted use. 
 
Considerations for cities regarding the opt-out? 
These new temporary dwellings address an emerging community need to provide more convenient 
temporary care. When analyzing whether or not to opt out, cities may want to consider that: 

• The new law alters a city’s level of zoning authority for these types of structures. 
• While the city’s zoning ordinances for accessories or recreational vehicles do not apply, 

these structures still must comply with setback requirements. 
• A city’s zoning and other ordinances, other than its accessory use or recreational vehicle 

ordinances, still apply to these structures. Because conflicts may arise between the statute 
and a city’s local ordinances, cities should confer with their city attorneys to analyze their 
current ordinances in light of the new law. 

 
 

                                                 
1 2016 Laws, Chapter 111.  
2 Some cities asked if other states have adopted this type of law.  The only states that have a somewhat similar statute 
at the time of publication of this FAQ are North Carolina and Virginia. It is worth noting that some states have adopted 
Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) statutes to allow granny flats, however, these ADU statutes differ from Minnesota’s 
Temporary Health Care Dwelling law. 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/laws/?year=2016&type=0&doctype=Chapter&id=111
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/laws/?year=2016&type=0&doctype=Chapter&id=111


Temporary Family HealthCare Dwellings 
June 27, 2016 
Page 2 

• Although not necessarily a legal issue for the city, it seems worth mentioning that the 
permit process does not have the individual with the physical or mental impairment or that 
individual’s power of attorney sign the permit application or a consent to release his or her 
data.  

• The application’s data requirements may result in the city possessing and maintaining 
nonpublic data governed by the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act. 

• The new law sets forth a permitting system for both cities and counties3. Cities should 
consider whether there is an interplay between these two statutes. 

 
Do cities need to do anything to have the new law apply in their city? 
No, the law goes into effect Sept. 1, 2016 and automatically applies to all cities that do not opt out 
or don’t already allow temporary family health care dwellings as a permitted use under their local 
ordinances.   
 
Do cities lose the option to opt out after the Sept. 1, 2016 effective date? 
No, the law does not set a deadline for opting out, so cities can opt out after Sept. 1, 2016. 
However, if the city has not opted out by Sept. 1, 2016, then the city must not only have 
determined a permit fee amount4 before that date (if the city wants to have an amount different 
than the law’s default amount), but also must be ready on that date to accept applications and 
process the permits in accordance with the short timeline required by the law. Cities should consult 
their city attorney to analyze how to handle applications submitted after Sept. 1, 2016, but still 
pending at the time of a later opt out. 
 
What if a city already allows a temporary family health care dwelling as a 
permitted use? 
If the city already has designated temporary family health care dwellings as a permitted use, then 
the law does not apply and the city follows its own ordinance. The city should consult its city 
attorney for any uncertainty about whether structures currently permitted under existing ordinances 
qualify as temporary family health care dwellings.  
 
What process should the city follow if it chooses to opt out of this statute? 
Cities that wish to opt out of this law must pass an ordinance to do so. The statute does not provide 
clear guidance on how to treat this opt-out ordinance. However, since the new law adds section 
462.3593 to the land use planning act (Minn. Stat. ch. 462), arguably, it may represent the adoption 
or an amendment of a zoning ordinance, triggering the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 462.357, 
subd. 2-4, including a public hearing with 10-day published notice. Therefore, cities may want to 
err on the side of caution and treat the opt-out ordinance as a zoning provision.5   
                                                 
3 See Minn. Stat. §394.307 
4 Cities do have flexibility as to amounts of the permit fee.  The law sets, as a default, a fee of $100 for the initial 
permit with a $50 renewal fee, but authorizes a city to provide otherwise by ordinance. 
5 For smaller communities without zoning at all, those cities still need to adopt an opt-out ordinance.  In those 
instances, it seems less likely that the opt-out ordinance would equate to zoning.  Because of the ambiguity of the 



Temporary Family HealthCare Dwellings 
June 27, 2016 
Page 3 

Does the League have a model ordinance for opting out of this program? 
Yes. Link to opt out ordinance here: Temporary Family Health Care Dwellings Ordinance 
 
 
Can cities partially opt out of the temporary family health care dwelling law? 
Not likely. The opt-out language of the statute allows a city, by ordinance, to opt out of the 
requirements of the law but makes no reference to opting out of parts of the law. If a city wanted a 
program different from the one specified in statute, the most conservative approach would be to 
opt out of the statute, then adopt an ordinance structured in the manner best suited to the city. 
Since the law does not explicitly provide for a partial opt out, cites wanting to just partially opt out 
from the statute should consult their city attorney. 
 
Can a city adopt pieces of this program or change the requirements listed in the 
statute? 
Similar to the answer about partially opting out, the law does not specifically authorize a city to 
alter the statutory requirements or adopt only just pieces of the statute. Several cities have asked if 
they could add additional criteria, like regulating placement on driveways, specific lot size limits, 
or anchoring requirements. As mentioned above, if a city wants a program different from the one 
specified in the statute, the most conservative approach would involve opting out of the statute in 
its entirety and then adopting an ordinance structured in the manner best suited to the city. Again, a 
city should consult its city attorney when considering adopting an altered version of the state law.  
 
What is required in an application for a temporary family health care dwelling 
permit? 
The mandatory application requests very specific information including, but not limited to:6 

• Name, address, and telephone number of the property owner, the resident of the property 
(if different than the owner), and the primary care giver;  

• Name of the mentally or physically impaired person; 
• Proof of care from a provider network, including respite care, primary care or remote 

monitoring; 
• Written certification signed by a Minnesota licensed physician, physician assistant or 

advanced practice registered nurse that the individual with the mental or physical 
impairment needs assistance performing two or more “instrumental activities of daily 
life;”7 

                                                 
statute, cities should consult their city attorneys on how best to approach adoption of the opt-out ordinance for their 
communities.   
6 New Minn. Stat. § 462.3593, subd. 3 sets forth all the application criteria. 
7 This is a term defined in law at Minn. Stat. § 256B.0659, subd. 1(i) as “activities to include meal planning and 
preparation; basic assistance with paying bills; shopping for food, clothing, and other essential items; performing 
household tasks integral to the personal care assistance services; communication by telephone and other media; and 
traveling, including to medical appointments and to participate in the community.” 

http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/TemporaryFamilyHealthCareDwellings.docx


Temporary Family HealthCare Dwellings 
June 27, 2016 
Page 4 

• An executed contract for septic sewer management or other proof of adequate septic sewer 
management; 

• An affidavit that the applicant provided notice to adjacent property owners and residents; 
• A general site map showing the location of the temporary dwelling and the other structures 

on the lot; and 
• Compliance with setbacks and maximum floor area requirements of primary structure. 

 
The law requires all of the following to sign the application: the primary caregiver, the owner of 
the property (on which the temporary dwelling will be located) and the resident of the property (if 
not the same as the property owner). However, neither the physically disabled or mentally 
impaired individual nor his or her power of attorney signs the application.   
 
Who can host a temporary family health care dwelling? 
Placement of a temporary family health care dwelling can only be on the property where a 
“caregiver” or “relative” resides. The statute defines caregiver as “an individual, 18 years of age or 
older, who: (1) provides care for a mentally or physically impaired person; and (2) is a relative, 
legal guardian, or health care agent of the mentally or physically impaired person for whom the 
individual is caring.” The definition of “relative” includes “a spouse, parent, grandparent, child, 
grandchild, sibling, uncle, aunt, nephew or niece of the mentally or physically impaired person. 
Relative also includes half, step and in-law relationships.” 
 
Is this program just for the elderly? 
No. The legislature did not include an age requirement for the mentally or physically impaired 
dweller. 8 
 
Who can live in a temporary family health care dwelling and for how long? 
The permit for a temporary health care dwelling must name the person eligible to reside in the unit.  
The law requires the person residing in the dwelling to qualify as “mentally or physically 
impaired,” defined as “a person who is a resident of this state and who requires assistance with two 
or more instrumental activities of daily living as certified by a physician, a physician assistant, or 
an advanced practice registered nurse, licenses to practice in this state.” The law specifically limits 
the time frame for these temporary dwellings permits to 6 months, with a one-time 6 month 
renewal option. Further, there can be only one dwelling per lot and only one dweller who resides 
within the temporary dwelling 
 
 
 

                                                 
8 The law expressly exempts a temporary family health care dwelling from being considered “housing with services 
establishment”, which, in turn, results in the 55 or older age restriction set forth for “housing with services 
establishment” not applying. 



Temporary Family HealthCare Dwellings 
June 27, 2016 
Page 5 

What structures qualify as temporary family health care dwellings under the new 
law? 
The specific structural requirements set forth in the law preclude using pop up campers on the 
driveway or the “granny flat” with its own foundation as a temporary structure. Qualifying 
temporary structures must:  

• Primarily be pre-assembled; 
• Cannot exceed 300 gross square feet; 
• Cannot attach to a permanent foundation; 
• Must be universally designed and meet state accessibility standards; 
• Must provide access to water and electrical utilities (by connecting to principal dwelling or 

by other comparable means9); 
• Must have compatible standard residential construction exterior materials; 
• Must have minimum insulation of R-15; 
• Must be portable (as defined by statute); 
• Must comply with Minnesota Rules chapter 1360 (prefabricated buildings) or 1361 

(industrialized/modular buildings), “and contain an Industrialized Buildings Commission 
seal and data plate or to American National Standards Institute Code 119.2”10; and  

• Must contain a backflow check valve.11 
 
Does the State Building Code apply to the construction of a temporary family 
health care dwelling? 
Mostly, no. These structures must meet accessibility standards (which are in the State Building 
Code). The primary types of dwellings proposed fall within the classification of recreational 
vehicles, to which the State Building Code does not apply. Two other options exist, however, for 
these types of dwellings. If these structures represent a pre-fabricated home, the federal building 
code requirements for manufactured homes apply (as stated in Minnesota Rules, Chapter 1360). If 
these structures are modular homes, on the other hand, they must be constructed consistent with 
the State Building Code (as stated in Minnesota Rules, Chapter 1361). 
 
What health, safety and welfare requirements does this new law include? 
Aside from the construction requirements of the unit, the temporary family health care dwelling 
must be located in an area on the property where “septic services and emergency vehicles can gain 
access to the temporary family health care dwelling in a safe and timely manner.” 
 
What local ordinances and zoning apply to a temporary health care dwelling? 
The new law states that ordinances related to accessory uses and recreational vehicle storage and 
parking do not apply to these temporary family health care dwellings.  

                                                 
9 The Legislature did not provide guidance on what represents “other comparable means”. 
10 ANSI Code 119.2 has been superseded by NFPA 1192.  For more information, the American National Standards 
Institute website is located at https://www.ansi.org/.  
11 New Minn. Stat. § 462.3593, subd. 2 sets forth all the structure criteria. 

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/?id=1360
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/?id=1361
https://www.ansi.org/


Temporary Family HealthCare Dwellings 
June 27, 2016 
Page 6 

However, unless otherwise provided, setbacks and other local ordinances, charter provisions, and 
applicable state laws still apply. Because conflicts may arise between the statute and one or more 
of the city’s other local ordinances, cities should confer with their city attorneys to analyze their 
current ordinances in light of the new law. 
 
What permit process should cities follow for these permits? 
The law creates a new type of expedited permit process. The permit approval process found in 
Minn. Stat. § 15.99 generally applies; however, the new law shortens the time frame within which 
the local governmental unit can make a decision on the permit. Due to the time sensitive nature of 
issuing a temporary dwelling permit, the city does not have to hold a public hearing on the 
application and has only 15 days (rather than 60 days) to either issue or deny a permit. For those 
councils that regularly meet only once a month, the law provides for a 30-day decision. The law 
specifically prohibits cities from extending the time for making a decision on the permit 
application. The new law allows the clock to restart if a city deems an application incomplete, but 
the city must provide the applicant written notice within five business days of receipt of the 
application identifying the missing information.  
 
Can cities collect fees for these permits? 
Cities have flexibility as to amounts of the permit fee. The law sets the fee at $100 for the initial 
permit with a $50 renewal fee, unless a city provides otherwise by ordinance 
 
Can cities inspect, enforce and ultimately revoke these permits? 
Yes, but only if the permit holder violates the requirements of the law. The statute allows for the 
city to require the permit holder to provide evidence of compliance and also authorizes the city to 
inspect the temporary dwelling at times convenient to the caregiver to determine compliance. The 
permit holder then has sixty (60) days from the date of revocation to remove the temporary family 
health care dwelling. The law does not address appeals of a revocation. 
 
How should cities handle data it acquires from these permits? 
The application data may result in the city possessing and maintaining nonpublic data governed by 
the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act. To minimize collection of protected heath data or 
other nonpublic data, the city could, for example, request that the required certification of need 
simply state “that the person who will reside in the temporary family health care dwelling needs 
assistance with two or more instrumental activities of daily living”, without including in that 
certification data or information about the specific reasons for the assistance, the types of 
assistance, the medical conditions or the treatment plans of the person with the mental illness or 
physical disability. Because of the complexities surrounding nonpublic data, cities should consult 
their city attorneys when drafting a permit application. 
 
Should the city consult its city attorney? 
Yes. As with any new law, to determine the potential impact on cities, the League recommends 
consulting with your city attorney. 



Temporary Family HealthCare Dwellings 
June 27, 2016 
Page 7 

Where can cities get additional information or ask other questions.   
For more information, contact Staff Attorney Pamela Whitmore at pwhitmore@lmc.org or LMC 
General Counsel Tom Grundhoefer at tgrundho@lmc.org. If you prefer calling, you can reach 
Pamela at 651.281.1224 or Tom at 651.281.1266. 

mailto:pwhitmore@lmc.org
mailto:tgrundho@lmc.org

	0823 City Council Agenda
	City Council Minutes Draft 7-26-16
	Work Session City Council Minutes 8-3-2016
	AP 0823
	Windsong Temporary Gambling Application CC 8.23.2016
	IND Resolution 16_0823_01 Windsong Temp Gambling
	Temp Gambling License-Open Arms
	CC Meeting_Partial Release of Contract for Development_082316
	PCDOCS-#7781851-v1-Boettcher___Partial_Release_of_Land_from_Development_Contract
	A6431979
	2016 June Activity Report & Director News & Notes - for Council
	2016 July Activity Report & Director News & Notes
	Independence Ordinance Amendment_Temporary Health Structures_ CC 8.23.2016
	IND - ORDINANCE 2016-03
	temporaryfamilyhealthcaredwellingsfaq
	Introduction:
	Where can I read the new law?
	Does the law require cities to follow and implement the new temporary family health care dwelling law?
	Considerations for cities regarding the opt-out?
	Do cities need to do anything to have the new law apply in their city?
	Do cities lose the option to opt out after the Sept. 1, 2016 effective date?
	What if a city already allows a temporary family health care dwelling as a permitted use?
	What process should the city follow if it chooses to opt out of this statute?
	Does the League have a model ordinance for opting out of this program?
	Can cities partially opt out of the temporary family health care dwelling law?
	Can a city adopt pieces of this program or change the requirements listed in the statute?
	What is required in an application for a temporary family health care dwelling permit?
	Who can host a temporary family health care dwelling?
	Is this program just for the elderly?
	Who can live in a temporary family health care dwelling and for how long?
	What structures qualify as temporary family health care dwellings under the new law?
	Does the State Building Code apply to the construction of a temporary family health care dwelling?
	What health, safety and welfare requirements does this new law include?
	What local ordinances and zoning apply to a temporary health care dwelling?
	What permit process should cities follow for these permits?
	Can cities collect fees for these permits?
	Can cities inspect, enforce and ultimately revoke these permits?
	How should cities handle data it acquires from these permits?
	Where can cities get additional information or ask other questions.




